Minutes for Town of Minnesott Beach
Board of Commissioners' Meeting
July 11, 2017

The meeting of the Board of Commissioners (BOC), Town of Minnesott Beach, was held
Tuesday, July 11, 2017 at 7:00 P.M at the Minnesott Beach Town Hall.

Board members present: Mayor Josh Potter, Commissioner Tim Fowler, Commissioner
Carolyn Casey and Commissioner Cliff Braly.

Board members absent: Commissioner Eber Warren

Others present: Carolyn Braly, Town Manager, Adam Garfinkel, Pete & Karen Hall, Dave
Stewart and Glenn Dunn & Becca Lang from Arlington Place.

Mayor Potter welcomed everyone to the meeting, called the meeting to order at 7:00pm
with a moment of silence and lead everyone in the pledge of alliance to the flag.

Mayor Potter called for any discussion or revision to the July 11, 2017 BOC meeting
agenda. Commissioner Fowler moved to approve the agenda as revised. All ayes.

Mayor Potter called for any discussion or revision to June 13, 2017 meeting minutes.
Commissioner Fowler moved to approve the minutes. All ayes.

Mayor Potter called for any discussion or revision to the Special BOC meeting held June
26,2017 for the budget. Commissioner Casey moved to approve the minutes. All ayes.

Public Comments:

Mr. Dave Stewart said a while back Camp Sea Gull had Embarq come in to work on their
speaker system. He said one of the technicians told him that was what they were doing.
He said the sound coming from the camp has increasing gotten louder with music,
repetitive announcements and the bugle morning, noon & night. Mr. Stewart said he
thought with today’s technology, there are ways to reduce the noise and still take care of
the camp’s needs. The Town’s ordinances Section 93.02 (C) addresses the use of
excessive noise. Mr. Stewart thanked the board for their attention to this. Mayor Potter
read into the record the time line of Mr. Stewart’s complaints and the actions taken by the
Town Manager. Mayor Potter said a noise permit could be requested by the camp. He
said under Section 93.46 the camp could be given notice of a hearing and the BOC would
make a decision upon the evidence brought forth. That is the process. He asked what the
board wanted to do. Commissioner Fowler moved to write a letter to the camp siting the
complaint and the applicable ordinance and see what they will do. All ayes.

Mr. Glenn Dunn, from Arlington Place, said they’ve presented the subdivision plat for
Lots 62, 62A & 62E following the Major Subdivision process to the Planning Board on
June 6 which were approved with some conditions. He acknowledged they have an “after
the fact” and recorded “as built” plats for single lots that have been further subdivided. He
said a lot of the information asked for under the Major Subdivision does not apply to these



lots and it has been difficult to sort all of that out. He said they were asking for not only
preliminary approval but final approval as well.

Public Hearing: Commissioner Fowler moved to go into Public Hearing on the UDO
update from the Planning Board. All ayes. Mayor Potter asked if there were any
comments about the UDO updates. There being none, Commissioner Fowler moved to
close the Public Hearing and go back into General Session. All ayes. Commissioner
Fowler moved to accept the recommendation of the Planning Board on the updates on the
UDO. All ayes. Commissioner Fowler thanked the Planning Board for all of their hard
work on these updates.

Mayor Potter read into the record the Resolution to Amend the UDO. Commissioner
Fowler moved to adopt the Resolution to Amend the UDO, that the amendments are
consistent with the Town’s Land Use Plan’s goals and objectives. All ayes. 3-0

Town Manager's report: One zoning permit application was submitted. It was for Mr. Ken
Howard, CCDW, for an addition to his shed. It was approved.

Planning Board Report: Chairman Adam Garfinkel reported the planning board met
July 6%, Mr. Garvin Hardison (through Mr. Bob McDonald — Representative)
brought before the board for informal discussion regarding a Minor Subdivision
review property between Hardison Dr and Hwy 306. Mr. Garfinkel explained to them
it would be a Major Subdivision review b/c retention of ownership of adjacent
property.

Mr. Garfinkel said the 2" issue dealt with a review of AP proposed subdivision
covering lots 62, 62A, 62E —Major Subdivision. Recommend to BOC as

Preliminary and Final Plat review.

UDO § 151.329: SKETCH PLAN FOR MAJOR SUBDIVISIONS - PB accepted AP
July 2017 Revised Master Plan and the 3 Lot Plats viewed together.

UDO § 151.335 INFORMATION REQUIREMENTS FOR PRELIMINARY &
FINAL PLATS - PB reviewed Plat Sketches for each of the 3 Lots 62, 62A, 62E w/
reference to AP revised Master Plan.

The following were to be supplied by Ms. Lang: (and were in email dated July 10)
UDO § 151.335(C)(4) — no phone numbers or addresses

UDO § 151.335(C)(10) — doesn’t identify all adjacent property owners. Issue
regarding ownership of common areas remaining on lots. The common areas for
Lots 62A & 62E were deeded to the cottage owners in July 2016.

Retained by Burton Farms (tax record) / Undivided Interests to Cottage Owners

UDO § 151.335(C)(15) — Lot 62A Sketch doesn’t show Kayak Center building as
adjacent property.

UDO § 151.335(E)(8) — Lot Sketches don’t label “Common Areas” / No copy of
instrument. Issue regarding ownership of common areas remaining on lots
Retained by Burton Farms (tax record) / Undivided Interests to Cottage Owners
UDO § 151.331(F)(1) — Lot 62E Sketch doesn’t identify Easement Line(s) for Off
Site Septic.

‘UDO § T51.331(F)(5) — Lot sketches don’t identify Water Distribution lines,
manholes, hydrants, etc.



UDO § 151.331(F)(9) — Lot 62E Sketch doesn’t identify plan for water supply and
sewage systems.
1. Motion to ACCEPT AP submission for Major Subdivision; (Revised Master Plan
and Plats for Lots 62, 62A, 62E)
VOTE: 5 to 0'in favor to recommend
2. Motion to PRESENT to BOC AP submission for Major Subdivision as
Preliminary and Final Plat submission
VOTE: 5 to 0 in favor to recommend
3. Motion to review 3 Lots (62, 62A, 62E) as a single Subdivision and recommend a
single $500 filing fee
VOTE: 3 to 1 (or 2) in favor to recommend
UDO § 151.331(H) PRELIMINARY PLAT FOR MAJOR SUBDIVISIONS
PB recommendation: CONDITIONAL APPROVAL
UDO § 151.335(E)(8) — Lot Sketches don’t label “Common Areas” / No copy of
instrument.
AP / Burton Farms file instrument of record indicating divestiture of ALL ownership
rights to Subdivision lots 62, 62A, and 62E including “Common Areas”, with
Common Areas identified as undivided interest ownership by cottage owners.
UDO § 151.334(H) SUBMISSION PROCEDURE (Final Plat)
PB recommendation: CONDITIONAL APPROVAL
UDO § 151.334(G) — Submission of signed certificates for Final Plat
AP / Burton Farms file certificates required under:
UDO § 151.334(G)(1): Certificate of ownership and dedication
UDO § 151.334(G)(4): Certificate of wastewater systems approval

Chairman Garfinkel said all of the information for the conditional approvals has been
received from Ms. Lang, however the planning board has not met to review it. He
said he has the required Planning Board’s recommendations be in writing if the BOC
approves the conditional Preliminary and Final Major Subdivision plats. Mayor
Potter thanked Chairman Garfinkel and the Planning Board for their diligence.

Old Business: for discussion and possible motion or action.

1. Mayor Potter reported that Mr. Garfinkel & he met with the Town's

Attorney, Jimmie Hicks, concerning the subdivision plats of Lots 62, 62A & 62E on June
23" at 9am. (1) It was determined that Burton Farms Development and the cottage owners
could jointly submit, after the fact, a plan for subdivision for Lots 62A & 62E. (2) It was
determined the Major Subdivision guidelines per our subdivision ordinance would apply
to these lots because Burton Farms Development Co owns adjacent property, streets and
rights-of-way. (3) It was determined that Burton Farms Development was in violation of
the Town of Minnesott Beach’s subdivision ordinance since November 13, 2013 and they
could be sited for violation with a fine of $500/day if the board chooses to litigate.
Commissioner Fowler recommended the board not make a decision at this time to fine
Burton Farms Development because the option will be there at a later date. Mayor Potter
said he would recommend the Town’s attorney negotiate a settlement for the costs
incurred by the Town. After additional discussion,-Commissioner Fowler- moved-to
recover the Town’s administrative & legal costs in the correction and closure of the
violation of the Town of Minnesott Beach’s Subdivision ordinance by Burton Farm’s



Development Company, LLC from Burton Farm’s Development Company, LLC. All
ayes.

Mr. Dunn asked if he could speak to the cost issue. He said this was a mistake made by
Arlington Place. Mr. Dunn said they thought no more approval was required. He said it
has cost them a lot of money as well to correct. There was no intent to circumvent the
Town’s ordinances and he asked the commissioners to keep that in mind. Mayor Potter
added that the Arlington Place personnel needed to make sure they know the Town’s
ordinances and to follow them so this never happens again.

Mayor Potter gave a brief the history of Arlington Place in Minnesott Beach and explained
that due to the town’s part time staff and volunteer boards, it was not prepared to fully
monitor a large subdivision development. The board depended on Arlington Place to help
by policing itself in regards to the Town’s ordinances.

Mayor Potter said he when he was seeking to have the subdivision of Lots 62, 62A & 62E
exempt from the subdivision ordinance, according to Adam Lovelady they did not meet
any of the four conditions for exemption. Lots created by the subdivision were lots for the
cottages plus a lot for the commons area on each of the original lots.

Commissioner Fowler said the BOC could adopt the current Master Plan that has the dog
park and the outside storage are on it and has been approved by the PB. However, he said
the 3 new Subdivisions would need to be on the Master Plan, approved by the Planning
Board. He recommended waiting to approve the New Revised Master Plan with the
subdivision plats added. Mayor Potter said the PB would have to recommend that the
BOC waive the lot sizes as set forth.in §151.168.(K)(3) Lot size.

Ms. Lang said the commons areas for each lot is governed by a subcommittee of Arlington
Place’s Property Owners Association which are made up of the cottage owners of each
respective lot. Mayor Potter asked for confirmation that the cottage owners are
responsible for the commons area of the lot on which their cottage sits. Ms. Land and Mr.
Dunn confirmed that to be correct.

Chairman Garfinkel said the new information for the Preliminary & Final sketch plan
check list for the Major Subdivision from Ms. Lang has not been seen by the Planning
Board. He said he would call a special meeting to expedite the approval process as soon as
he is given a new Revised July 2017 Master Plan with the added subdivision insert.

Ms. Lang asked if the BOC would conditionally approve the Master Plan and the
Subdivisions as is tonight. Commissioner Fowler said no, he would not recommend that.

Mayor Potter said the BOC would take no action on the Master Plan and the Major
Subdivision Plats at this meeting. Ms. Lang asked about the subdivision plat filing fee.
Mayor Potter said the town’s policy states $500 per plat. He said there are 3 plats so the
fee is $1,500.

Commissioner Fowler moved to request the Planning Board call a special meeting to
review the newly gathered information for the Preliminary & Final Subdivision Plats and



the new revised Master Plan with the Subdivision Plats insert and that they will make a
recommendation regarding 151.168(k)(3). All ayes.

Update on Town projects: Commissioner Braly reported the foundation for the new Town
Hall addition will be poured within the next two weeks. He said he has not been able to
contact the owner of the adjacent lot for permission to cut the trees next to the building at a
asphalt work will be cutting out the old cold patch and replace it with sand and rock. He
said there are 5 places that need this done. Phase 3 of the drainage maintenance on
Country Club Drive West will begin this week. The estimated cost for CCDW is an
‘additional $8,000. He moved for the BOC to-approve $13,500 to.continue the. town’s
projects. All ayes.

Commissioner Fowler accepted the Zoning Amendment request from the Zoning
Administrator via the Town Manager. He said he will look over the file of Mr. William
Conklin and his request for a Zoning Amendment and forward to the Planning Board.
Town Manager contacted Adam Lovelady at the SOG regarding requirements for handling
this request and passed along his response. (151.267)

Financial Report — Town Manager, Carolyn Braly reported the Town’s current assets as
of June 30, 2017 are: First Citizen's Bank Checking $13.036.53; First Citizen's MM
$199,959.93; First South Bank & Savings $217,517.86; North Carolina Management Trust
is $201,913.33; Petty Cash $50.00. The town currently has CDs at First South Bank &
Savings ($75,000; $50,000; $40,249.74; $21,173.62, $20,901.71; $20,174.76). Total assets
to the Town are a total of $880,411.35.

Miscellaneous: Mayor Potter reminded all of the deadline to file for re-election is July 21,
2017 at noon. The Arapahoe Fire Department has been upgraded from 5 to 9.

Commissioner Fowler moved to adjourn. All ayes.

P

, /o
A"Q((EJL w2 Xegil

Donna Scott, Town Clerk




